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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

JAMES M. LEDAKlS, State Bar No. 132645 
Deputy Attollley General 

California Departnlent of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2105 
Facshnile: (619) 645-2061 

Attorneys for COlnplainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPH 
1103 Wilbur Avenue 
San Diego, CA 62109 

Pharnlacist License No. RPH 39152 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2436 

OAH No. L-2002030204 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the 

above-entitled proceedings that the following nlatters are true: 

PARTIES 

1. Patricia F. Hanis (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of 

Pharmacy. She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this nlatter 

by Bill Lockyer, Attorney General of the State of California, by Jrunes M. Ledakis, Deputy 

Attorney General. 

2. Respondent ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPh (Respondent) is 

represented in this proceeding by attorney Wendy A. McGhee, Esq., whose address is 410 South 

Melrose Drive, Suite 106, Vista, CA 92084, 7000 0520 0025 1945 1098. 
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3. On or about March 13, 1985, the Board ofPhannacy issued license 

number RPH 39152 to ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPh (Respondent). The license was in full 

force and effect at all tiInes relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 2436 and will 

expire on February 28, 2003, unless renewed. 

JURISDICTION 

4. Accusation No. 2436 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), 

Department of Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondent. The Accusation 

and all other statutorily required doclunents were properly served on Respondent on January 31, 

2002. Respondent timely filed her Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation. A copy of 

Accusation No. 2436 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

5. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and 

understands the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 2436. Respondent has also carefully 

read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlelnent and 

Disciplinary Order. 

6. Respondent is fully aware of her legal rights in this Inatter, including the 

right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by 

counsel at her own expense; the right to confront and cross-exan1ine the witnesses against her; 

the right to present evidence and to testify on her own behalf; the right to the issuance of 

subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of doculnents; the right to 

reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the 

California Adlninistrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up 

each and every right set forth above. 

CULPABILITY 

8. Respondent adn1its the truth of each and every charge and allegation in 

Accusation No. 2436. 
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9. Respondent agrees that her license is subject to discipline and she agrees 

to be bound by the Board's imposition of discipline as set f01ih in the Disciplinary Order below. 

RESERVATION 

10. The ad1nissions 1nade by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of 

this proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Board of Pharnlacy or other professional 

licensing agency is involved, and shall not be ad1nissible in any other cri1ninal or civil 

proceeding. 

CONTINGENCY 

11. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board ofPhannacy. 

Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for C01nplainant and the staff of the Board of 

Phannacy may con1IDunicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, 

without notice to or participation by Respondent or her counsel. By signing the 'stipulation, 

Respondent understands and agrees that she 1nay not withdraw her agree1nent or seek to rescind 

the stipulation prior to the tiIne the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt 

this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settle1nent and Disciplinary Order shall 

be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inad1nissible in any legal action 

between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqualified fronl fu1iher action by having 

considered this 1natter. 

12. The parties understand and agree that facsiInile or other copies of this 

Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including the signatures thereto, shall have the 

satne force and effect as the originals. 

13. In consideration of the foregoing ad1nissions and stipulations, the pruiies 

agree that the Board may, without further notice or fornlal proceeding, issue and enter the 

following Disciplinary Order: 

DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that license nunlber RPH 39152 issued to 

Respondent ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPh is revoked. However, the revocation is stayed 

and Respondent is placed on probation for five (5) years on the following tenns and conditions: 
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1. Actual Suspension - Pharmacist. As part of probation, Respondent is 

suspended froin the practice of phan11acy for 90 days, however, Respondent is given 90 days 

credit for the one year she rel11ained unenlployed as a pharnlacist. Therefore, Respondent has 

cOl11pleted her 90 day suspension. 

2. Obey All Laws. Respondent shall obey all federal and state laws and 

regulations substantially related or governing the practice of phan11acy. 

3. Reporting to the Board. Respondent shall report to the Board quarterly. 

The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Respondent shall state under 

penalty ofperjury whether there has been conlpliance with all the ten11S and conditions of 

pro bation. If the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be extended 

autol11atically until such th11e as the final repoli is nlade. 

4. Interview with the Board. Upon. receipt of reasonable notice, respondent 

shall appear in person for interviews with the board upon request at various intervals at a location 

to be determined by the board. Failure to appear for a scheduled interview without prior 

notification to board staff shall be considered a violation of probation. 

5. Cooperation with Board Staff. Respondent shall cooperate with the 

Board's inspection progral11 alld in the Board's 111onitoring and investigation of the Respondent's 

cOlnpliallCe with the ten11S and conditions of Female probation. Failure to cooperate shall be 

considered a violation of pro bation. 

6. Continuing Education. Respondent shall provide evidence of effolis to 

nlaintain skill and lmowledge as a phan11acist as directed by the Board. 

7. Notice to Employers. Respondent shall notify all present and prospective 

enlployers of the decision in case No. 2436 and the ten11s, conditions and restrictions imposed on 

Respondent by the decision. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and 

within fifteen (15) days of Respondent undeliaking new el11ploynlent, Respondent shall cause 

Fel11ale el11ployer to repoli to the Board in writing acknowledging the el11ployer has read the 

decision in case No. 2436. 

If Respondent works for or is employed by or through a phan11acy el11ploYl11ent 
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service, Respondent must notify the phan11acist-in-charge and/or owner at every phannacy at 

which she is to enlployed or used of the fact and terms of the decision in case number 2436 in 

advance of the Respondent c0l111nencing work at the pharnlacy. 

IE111ploY111ent" within the 111eaning of this provision shall include any full-ti111e, 

prui-ti111e, te111porary or relief service or phan11acy 111anagenlent service as a phan11acist, whether 

the Respondent is considered an employee or independent contractor. 

8. No Preceptorships, Supervision of Interns, Being Pharmacist-in-

Charge. Respondent shall not supervise any intern pharnlacist or perfon11 any of the duties of a 

preceptor, nor shall Respondent be the phan11acist-in-charge of any pharmacy licensed by the 

Board. 

9. Reimbursement of Board Costs. Respondent shall pay to the Board its 

costs of investigation and prosecution in the aI110lmt of $3,085. 

The filing of bankruptcy by respondent shall not relieve the respondent of his or 

her responsibility to reit11burse the board its costs of investigation aIld prosecution. 

10. Probation Monitoring Costs. Respondent shall pay the costs associated 

with probation 111onitoring as deternlined by the Board each and every year of probation. Such 

costs shall be payable to the Board at the end of each year of probation. Failure to pay such costs 

shall be considered a violation of probation. 

11. Status of License. Respondent shall, at all tinles while 011 probation, 

111aintain an active cunent license with the Board, including any period during which suspension 

 0r--pr0hatiefl-is-teHeEh-I-f-Res-peflElent-~s-1-icense-~p-ir-es--by-epefatiefl-ef-law-er-et-hef-wise;-u-p0n---

renewal or re-application, Respondent's license shall be subject to all ten11S of this probation not 

previously satisfied. 

Respondent shall, at all tinles while on probation, 111aintain an current license with 

the Board. If Respondent submits an application to the Board, and the application is approved, 

for a change of location, change or pen11it or change of ownership, the Board shall retain 

continuing jurisdiction over the license, and the Respondent shall re111ain on probation as 

detennined by the Board or its designee. 
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12. License Surrender while on Probation/Suspension 

Following the effective date of this decision, should respondent cease practice due to retireinent 

or health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the tenns and conditions ofprobatiol1, respondent 

Inay tender his or her license to the board for surrender. The board shall have the discretion 

whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other action it deems appropriate and 

reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the surrender of the license, respondent will no longer be 

subject to the terms and conditions of probation. 

Upon acceptance of the surrender, respondent shall relinquish his or her pocket license to 

the board within 10 days of notification by the board that the surrender is accepted. Respondent 

Inay not reapply for any license froin the board for three years from the effective date of the 

surrender. Respondent shallineet all requireinents applicable to the license sought as of the date 

the application for that license is submitted to the board. 

13 . Notification of EmploymentlMailing Address Change. Respondent 

shall notify the board within ten (10) days of a change in einploynlent. Said notification shall 

include the reasons for leaving and/or the address of the new enlployer, supervisor or owner and 

work schedule if known. Respondent shall notify the Board in writing within 10 days of a 

change in name, Inailing address or phone nUlnber. 

14. Tolling of Probation. 

Should Respondent, regardless of residency, for any reason cease practicing phannacy for 

a Ininhnuin of 80 hours per calender Inonth in California, Respondent Inust notify the board in 

writing within ten (10) days of cessation of the practice of phannacy or the resu111ption of the 

practice of pharnlacy. 

"Cessation of practice" Ineans any period oftilne exceeding thhty (30) days in 

which Respondent is not engaged in the practice of phannacy as defined in 

section 4052 of the Business and Professions Code. 

Respondent shall work at least 40 hours in each calendar Inonth as a phannacist and at 

least an average of 80 hours per month in any six consecutive Inonths. Failure to do so will be a 
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violation of probation. If respondent has not cOlnplied with this condition during the 

probationary term, and respondent has presented sufficient doclunentation of his or her good 

faith efforts to comply with this condition, and if no other conditions have been violated, the 

board, in its discretion, may grant an extension of respondent's probation period up to one year 

without further hearing in order to cOlnply with this condition. 

15. Violation of Probation. If Respondent violates probation in any respect, 

the Board, after giving Respondent notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation 

and carry out the disciplinary order which was stayed. If a petition to revoke probation or an 

accusation is filed against Respondent during probation, the Board shall have continuing 

jurisdiction, and the period of probation shall be extended, until the petition to revoke probation 

is heard and decided. If a Respondent has not complied with any ternl or condition of probation, 

the Board shall have continuing jurisdiC?tion over Respondent, and probation shall autolnatically 

be extended until all tenns and conditions have been nlet or the Board has taken other action as 

deemed appropriate to treat the failure to cOlnply as a violation of probation, to tenninate 

pro bation, and to itnpose the penalty which was stayed. 

16. Completion of Probation. Upon successful conlpletion of probation, 

Respondent's license will be fully restored. 

17. Adoption of Stipulation. It is understood that, in deciding whether to 

adopt this stipulation, the Board nlay receive oral and written presentation from, and Inake 

inquiries of, complainant, her attorneys, the Board's attorneys, consulting experts, and the 

Board's enforcelnent cOlmnittee. 

18. Rehabilitation Program. Phannacist Recovery Program (PRP) 

Within 30 days of the effective date of this decision, respondent shall contact the Pharmacists 

Recovery Program for evaluation and shall successfully participate in and complete the treatment 

contract and any subsequent addendulns as recolnmended and provided by the PRP and as 

approved by the board. The costs for PRP participation shall be borne by the respondent. 

If respondent is currently elu'olled in the PRP, said participation is now luandatory and is no 
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longer considered a self-refenal under Business and Professions Code section 4363, as of the 

effective date of this decision. Respondent shall successfully participate in and cOlnplete his or 

her cunent contract and any subsequent addendums with the PRP. Probation shall be 

autoinatically extended until respondent successfully cOlnpletes his or her treatlnent contract. 

Any person terminated from the progratn shall be auton1atically suspended upon notice by the 

board. Respondent may not reSUlne the practice of pharn1acy until notified by the board in 

writing. The board shall retain jurisdiction to institute action to tenninate probation for at1y 

violation of this term. 

19. Random Fluid Testing. Within 30 days of the effective date of this 

decision, respondent shall contact the Phannacists Recovery Progratn for evaluation and shall 

successfully participate in and cOlnplete the treatlnent contract and any subsequent addenduins as 

recolmnended and provided by the PRP and as approved by the board. The costs for PRP 

patiicipation shall be borne by the respondent. 

If respondent is cunently enrolled in the PRP, said patiicipation is now n1andatory and is 

no longer considered a self-refenal under Business and Professions Code section 4363, as of the 

effective date of this decision. Respondent shall successfully participate in and cOlnplete his or 

her current contract and any subsequent addendulns with the PRP. Probation shall be 

autolnatically extended until respondent successfully con1pletes his or her treatn1.ent contract. 

Any person tern1inated froin the progran1 shall be automatically suspended upon notice by the 

board. Respondent Inay not resun1e the practice of phannacy until notified by the board in 

writing. The board shall retain jurisdiction to institute action to tenninate probation for any 

violation of this tenn. 

20. Supervised Practice. Respondent shall practice only under the 

supervision of a phannacist not on probation to the Board. 

Respondent shall not practice until the supervisor is approved by the board or its 

designee. The supervision as required by the Board, Inay be: 

Continuous - 75% to 100% of a work week 
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Substantial- At least 50% of a work week 

Partial - At least 25% of a work week 

Daily Review - Supervisor's review of probationer's daily activities within 24 

days. 

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent shall 

have his/her supervisor subnlit a report to the Board in writing stating the supervisor has read the 

decision in case nmnber 2436. If Respondent changes elnploYlnent, Respondent shall have her 

new supervisor, within fifteen (15) days after employment COlllillences, sublnit a report to the 

Board in writing stating the supervisor has read the decision in case nunlber 2436. Within ten 

(10), days of leaving enlploYlnent, Respondent shall so notify the Board in writing. 

21. No Ownership of Premises. Respondent shall not own, have any legal 

or beneficial interest in, or serve as a Inanager, adnlinistrator, nlelnber, officer, director, 

associate, or partner of any business, firnl, partnership, or corporation currently or hereinafter 

licensed by the Board. Respondent shall sell or transfer any legal or beneficial interest in any 

entity licensed by the Board within 90 days following the effective date of this decision and shall 

imlnediately thereafter provide written proof thereof to the Board. 

22. Random Drug Screening (If PRP provision is required, this ternl is also 

to be included to allow for continued fluid nl0nitoring by the Board in cases where a respondent 

successfully complete the PRP before conlpletion of the probation period; tenns also appropriate 

for those cases where the evidence denl0nstrates that the respondent nlay have a problenl with 

chelnical dependency (drugs, alcohol) but where the PRP is not required.) 

Within 30 days of the effective date of this decision, respondent shall contact the Pharnlacists 

Recovery Program for evaluation and shall successfully participate in and conlplete the treatlnent 

contract and any subsequent addendunls as recolnlnended and provided by the PRP and as 

approved by the board. The costs for PRP participation shall be borne by the respondent. 

If respondent is currently enrolled in the PRP, said participation is now Inandatory and is no 

longer considered a self-referral under Business and Professions Code section 4363, as of the 

9 
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effective date of this deeision. Respondent shall successfully participate In and complete his or 

her eurnmt contract and any subsequent addendUltli with the PRP. Probation shall be 

automa1i.cally extended unlil respaDdcnt successfully completes his Ot her treatmem ~ntract. 

July person terminated from the program sball be automatically suspended upon notice by 1he 

board.. RespondeD! may not l"CSWDe the practice ofpb~ until notifie4 by the board in 

wrltinQ. The board shall retain jlJrisdiction to institute au..'1lon to terminate probation for any 

violation oftbis toan. 

23. Abstain fnHa Drup aDd Alcohol USC~ Respondent shall completely 

abstain from the possessian or UBe of alcohol, contrQlled substances, dangerous drugs and their 

associated paraphernalia ex~t when the dru.p are lawfully prescribed by a licensed practilionet 

IS part ofa documented medical treatmmt.. Upon request of the board. JWPondent shall provic:ie 

doeumentalion from the licensed practitioner that ~_ prescription was leaitimllte1y issued mld is 

a necessary part ofthe treatment of the respondent. 

ACCEPTANCE 

1 have oarefully mad the above StipulAted Settlement and Disciplinary Order and 

have fully discussed it with my attorney. Wendy A. MoGhee. Gsq.. I understand the stipulation 

and the effect it will have on m.y lieeMe number RPR 39152. I enter into this Stipulated 

Settlement and DisciplilW'Y Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be 

bound by me Decliicm. and Order of the Board ofPbamuwy. 

DATED: IIjJ/JU tlfj ~. - L .. --.LJ_ ~." 
t~~ 21' 
ELiZ~SMITH)RPH 
Respondent 

I have read and fully discussed with R.espon6ent ELIZABETH LOVE SMlTIi, 

R.Ph the terms and conditions and other matters contained in tbe above Slipulated Settlement and 

Disciplinary Order. I approve its tormamd contont. 

DATED;litilAfi~· ~.. .~ 
w~m4~ '. 
Attorney for spondent 
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DO] Docket Number: 03583110·SD2001AD0643 

ENDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Settlelnent and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully 

sublnitted for consideration by the Board ofPhaImacy of the Departlnent of Consumer Affairs. 

DATED: ~.2~Ml- . 
BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 
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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPH 
1103 Wilbur Avenue 
San Diego, CA 62109 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 39152 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2436 

OAB No. L-2002030204 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Settlelnent and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by 

the Board ofPhannacy, Departlnent of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this nlatter. 

TIus Decision shall becolne effective on July 4, 2002 

It is so ORDERED June 4, 2002 
------~------------

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUl\1ER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By: 

Board President 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

JAMES M. LEDAKIS, State Bar No. 132645 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, California 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2105 
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER,AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORN'IA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPH 
1103 Wilbur Avenue 
San Diego, CA 92109 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 39152 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2436 

ACCUSATION 

Complainant alleges: 


PARTIES 


l. Patricia F. Harris ("Complainant") brings this Accusation solely in her 

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharnlacy, Departnlent of Consuluer 

Affairs. 

2. On or about March 13, 1985, the Board of Pharmacy issued License No. 

RPH 39152 to ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPH ('IRespondent"). It will expire on February 

28.) 2003. 
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JURISDICTION 


3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy ("Board"), 

under the authority of the following sections of the Business and Professions Code ("Code"): 

4. Section 4022 of the Code states: 

"Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" nleans any drug or device unsafe for 

self-use, except veterinary drugs that are labeled as such, and includes the following: 

!tea) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits dispensing 

without prescription,' 'Rx only,' or words of sinlilar import ... , 


" 


"(c) Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully 

dispensed only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006." 

5. Section 4301 of the Code states in pertinent part: 

"The Board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 

unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation 

or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of 

the following: 

" 

n(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, 

deceit, or corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee 

or otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not. 

!I(g) Knowingly making or signing any certificate or other doculnent that falsely 

represents the existence or nonexistence of a state of facts. 

"(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any 

dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous 

or injurious to oneself. to a person holding a license under Chapter 9 (conllnencing with 

Section 4000) of the Business and Professions Code, or to any other person or to the 

public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety 

to the public the practice authorized hy the license ... 

2 
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"1) The conviction of a crilne substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

and duties of a licensee under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of the Business 

and Professions Code. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 

(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating 

controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled 

substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. 

In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact 

that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding 

the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a 

conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to determine if the 

conviction is of an offense substantially related to the qualifications,functions, and duties 

of a licensee under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of the Business and 

Professions Code. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo 

contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision. The board 

may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has 

been affinned on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the 

imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the 

Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of 

not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, 

or indictment. 

II 

6, Section 4059 of the Code states in pertinent part: 

"(a) That no person shall furnish any dangerous drug or dangerous device except 

upon the prescription of a physician~ dentist, podiatrist, optolnetrist, or veterinanan .... 

7. Section 4060 of the Code states in pertinent pati: 

"No person shall possess any controlled substance~ except that furnished to a 

IJerSOli upon the prescription of a physician, dentist~ podiatrist~ or veterinarian~ or 
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furnished pursuant to a drug ,order issued by a physician as~sistant pursuant to Section 

3502.1 or a nurse practitioner pursuant to Section 2836.1 .. ,It 

8. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may 

request the administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or 

violations of the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

and enforcement of the case. 

9. This Accusation refers to the following sections of the Health & Safety 

Code: 

10. H & S Code section 11173 (a) states in pertinent part: 

"No person shall obtain or attempt to obtain controlled substances, or procure or 

attempt to procure the administration of or prescription for controlled substances, (1) by 

fraud, deceit, misrepresentation, or subterfuge; or (2) by the concealment of a material 

fact." 

11. Health & Safety Code (H&S Code) section 11170 states in pertinent part: 

"No person shall prescribe, administer, or furnish a controlled substance for himself." 

12. California Code of Regulations Section 1770 states in pertinent part: 

"For purposes of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license 

pursuant to Division 1.5 (cOlnlnencing with Section 475) of the Business & Professions 

Code, a critne or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, 

functions, or duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences 

present or potential unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perform the functions 

authorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent with the public health. 

safety, or welfare. II 

DRUGS 

13, The following drugs are dangerous drugs under Business & Professions 

Code section 4022 in that they can only be lawfully dispensed by prescription of an authorized 

prescriber: Ambien, Bactrim DS, Entex LA. Relal'cn, and Vicodin. 
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(a) Alubien is classified as a Schedule IV controlled substance under H&S 

Code section 11 057 (d). 

(b) Vicodin is classified as a Schedule III controlled Substance under H&S Code 

section 11 056 (e). 

(c) Bactrim DS, Entex LA and Relafen are all classified as dangerous drugs 

according to Business and Professions Code section 4022 

CHARGES AND ALLEGATIONS 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE ., 

(Unprofessional Conduct for Fraud and Deceit) 

14. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (f) for the 

commission of an act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit or corruption in that 

from June 25, 1999 through June 17,2000, Respondent, admitted that she forged seven 

prescriptions for Ambien, Bactrin1 DS, Entex LA, Relafen and Vicodin for her own use while she 

worked as a pharmacist at Scripps Memorial Hospital Pharmacy. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Unprofessional Conduct for Knowingly Making a False Representation of Fact) 


15. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (g) for 

knowingly making and signing forged prescriptions in order to obtain controlled substances, as 

lTIOre particularly set forth in paragraphs 13 and 14 and incorporated by reference. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Unprofessional Conduct for Violation of State Law RegUlating Dangerous Drugs) 


16. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (j) in 

conjunction with H & S Code sections 11173(a) and 1 ] 170 as set forth in paragraphs 13 and 14 

above and incorporated herein. 
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FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Unprofessional Conduct for Conviction of a Crime Substantially 


Related to a Licensee's Qualifications, Functions and Duties) 


17. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (1) in that she 

admitted to a violation of H & S Code section 11368 by pleading guilty in the Superior Court of 

California, County of San Diego, in Criminal Case No. 814879 to Count Five of said Complaint, 

wherein Respondent did obtain a narcotic drug by a forged or altered prescription as set forth in 

paragraphs 13 and 14 above which are incorporated by reference. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein 
·\hl.f~' 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending License Number RPH 39152, issued to 

ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPH; 

2. Ordering ELIZABETH LOVE SMITH, RPH to pay the Board of 

Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code section 125.3; 

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: ---'-\-i-'=I/~~~"+I-=-O....:.......~____ 

fJ.~ 
PATRICIA F. HARRIS 
Executive Officer 
Board of Phannacy 
Department of Consun1er Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 


